
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Tuesday 8 March 2022.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Governance 
and Audit 
Committee 

 

     
 

 

Wednesday, 16 March 2022 at 2.00 pm 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House, St. Peter's Hill, 

Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Paul Wood (Chairman) 
Councillor Kaffy Rice-Oxley (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Ashley Baxter, Councillor Gloria Johnson, Councillor Jacky Smith, 
Councillor Sue Woolley and Councillor Richard Dixon-Warren 
 

Agenda 
 

   
1.   Apologies for absence 

 
 

2.   Disclosure of interests 
 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting. 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 26 January 2022 
 

(Pages 3 - 12) 

4.   Updates from previous meeting 
 

To consider updates on actions agreed at the meeting held on 26 January 
2022. 
 

(Page 13) 

5.   Internal Audit Progress Report 
 

The internal audit plan for 2021/22 was approved by the Governance and 
Audit Committee at the 18 March 2021 meeting.  This report provides an 
update on progress against that plan and summarises the results of our 
work. 
 

(Pages 15 - 25) 

6.   Internal Audit Follow Up Report 
 

We have undertaken a review to follow up on progress made to 
implement the previously agreed management actions. 
 

(Pages 27 - 41) 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

7.   Draft Internal Audit Annual Report 2021-22 
 

In accordance with the terms of reference of the Committee one of the key 
areas for the Committee is to monitor the audit activity on behalf of the 
Council.  This includes receiving the annual report and opinion from the 
Head of Internal Audit. 
 

(Pages 43 - 59) 

8.   Internal Audit Draft Plan 2022 – 23 
 

This report sets out the Internal Audit Plan as at 1 April 2022.  The plan 
details the activities to be audited and the indicative scope for each audit.   
 

(Pages 61 - 65) 

9.   Statement of Accounting Policies 
 

In line with the Committee’s terms of reference it is a requirement that the 
proposed policies are reported prior to the production of the Statement of 
Accounts. 
 

(Pages 67 - 86) 

10.   Work Programme 2021 – 2022 
 

To consider the Committee’s Work Programme for 2021 – 2022. 
 

(Pages 87 - 88) 

11.   Any other business, which the chairman, by reasons of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent. 
 

 



 
 

Minutes 
 

Governance and Audit Committee 
 
Wednesday, 26 January 2022,14:00 
 
Council Chamber – South Kesteven House, 
St. Peter’s Hill, Grantham.  NG31 6PZ 

 

 

 

Committee Members present 
 

 

Councillor Mark Whittington (Chairman) 
Councillor Paul Wood (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor Gloria Johnson 
Councillor Kaffy Rice-Oxley 
Councillor Jacky Smith 
Councillor Sue Woolley 
 

 

Cabinet Members in attendance 
 
Councillor Kelham Cooke (The Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Adam Stokes (The Deputy Leader of the Council) 
 
 

Officers in attendance 
 
Alan Robinson (Deputy Chief Executive (Monitoring Officer)) 
Richard Wyles (Assistant Director of Finance (S151 Officer)) 
Emma Whittaker (Assistant Director of Planning) 
Craig Spence (Assistant Director of Housing) 
Alison Hall-Wright (Head of Finance) 
Tracey Elliott (Governance and Risk Officer) 
Sarah Downs (Democratic Services Officer) 

 

 
52. Apologies for absence 

 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Ashley Baxter. 

 
53. Disclosure of interests 

 
No interests were disclosed. 

 
54. Minutes of the meeting held on 20 October 2021 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 20 October 2021 were proposed, seconded 
and AGREED as a correct record subject to the following amendment: 

 

3

Agenda Item 3



 
 

• That the word ‘Finance’ be added in reference to the Finance, Economic 
Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 

55. Updates from previous meeting 
 

At the request of the Committee at the previous meeting on 20 October 2021, 
updates were presented to Members on the following items: 
 
The Assistant Director for Housing updated the Committee on the recent installation 
of the ‘Propeller’ Housing Compliance computer system.  It was confirmed that fire, 
gas and electric certification record installation was complete.  The priority 
remained management of fire actions, of which a module had been added so as to 
track fire assets such as fire doors and extinguishers and to enable specific 
monitoring.  The Officer further informed the Committee that the asbestos module 
was two weeks away from completion. 

 
The Assistant Director of Finance updated the Committee on IT access removal 
from ex-staff members.  He confirmed that a system change had now eliminated 
the risk of IT access not being removed in a timely manner.  HR sent an automatic 
notification to IT Services when a staff member left and all access was promptly 
cancelled. 
 
The Assistant Director of Planning confirmed to Members that the latest 
infrastructure funding statement as at 31 December 2021 had been published, 
setting out Section 106 funds held, spent and funds allocated.  The overall process 
was to be looked at to ensure better engagement with the stakeholders and a 
robustness of process. 

 
Members raised the following points: 

 

• That the Section 106 process was to come before the Governance and Audit 
Committee and performance issues were relevant to Planning Committee and 
Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 

• Was the Council keeping up to date with communication with Town and Parish 
Councils, who may have been able to offer valuable input? 

 

• A process where potentially unspent funds were highlighted before they 
expired would have been welcomed.  This could include access by Members 
to the relevant data for information purposes.  

 
The Assistant Director of Planning confirmed that no funds were returned to 
Developers, which was positive.  The whole process was being improved and to 
facilitate better engagement with Town and Parish Councils.  Further training for 
Officers and Members was being looked into.  It was confirmed that processes were 
to ensure the funds were put to the best possible purpose. 

 
 

4



 
 

ACTION 1   
 
That the Governance and Audit Committee receive updated ‘Propeller’ reports 
to be circulated prior to the next meeting. 
 
 
ACTION 2 
 
That a Section 106 updated report be brought before the Governance and 
Audit Committee in six months time. 

 
56. Internal Audit Progress Report 

 
A report was presented to the Committee by Internal Auditors, RSM, following 
completion of a review as part of the approved audit annual plan for 2021/22. 
 
The Auditor confirmed three reports had been finalised since the Committee last 
met.  These were Council owned companies, medium term financial planning and a 
third follow up report. 
 
The Auditor confirmed the whole audit was to be complete by the financial year 
end.  He also confirmed that the audit on medium-term financial planning 
recommended that the Council ensure budget proposals were linked to the 
corporate plan. 
 
The Assistant Director of Finance added that the corporate plan and budget 
proposals were not fully aligned until the budget setting process for 2022/23 as the 
corporate plan was approved in October 2020. 
 
The review of the Council-owned companies enabled the auditors to assess the 
controls that had been put in place and how those controls ensured governance.  It 
was noted that EnvironmentSK Ltd was using an out of date specification that was 
being reviewed. 

 
The Auditor continued that all Council-owned companies had to ensure terms of 
reference were updated, to focus on strategic detail as well as operational tasks. 
 
The Auditor paused for questions at which point the following points were raised: 
 

• A Member expressed concern at the consistency in working processes of the 
SK companies and asked if a Governance review could be considered. 

 

• It was noted that no further training workshops for the Companies Committee 
had taken place over the last 18 months.  A Member asked when the next 
available training would be taking place? 

 
Councillor Paul Wood declared an interest at this stage of the meeting as he was 
appointed as a Director of EnvironmentSK Ltd which was noted by the Committee. 

5



 
 

 
The Auditor added that suggested timescales for completion of the workshops were 
within the report. 
 
The Assistant Director of Finance informed that in reference to the consistency of 
business templates, there was no agreed format as these were put together 
according to each company’s style and preference.  As shareholder of the Council-
owned companies, the Companies Committee was required to request exactly what 
they want to see in terms of performance information and the frequency required for 
being presented to Members. 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive confirmed that the Members Development training 
programme was constantly reviewed alongside Directors roles and responsibilities.  
It was acknowledged that 18 months was too long ago and would be updated as a 
matter of urgency.   
 
The Leader of the Council acknowledged that the request for a Governance review 
expressed a valid point. 
 
The Chairman noted that Internal Auditors could be asked to deliver a work plan for 
a Governance review initially.  Members agreed with this point. 
 
A Member asked if the performance templates were being prepared in a timely 
enough manner to be brought before the next Companies Committee meeting on 
26 April 2022. 
 
The Assistant Director of Finance confirmed that the Monitoring Officer would 
oversee this and required liaising with Companies Committee from the end of 
March. 
 
ACTION 3 

 
That the Governance and Audit Committee are provided with an update on 
the Members Development Programme and training for Companies 
Committee Members. 
 
AGREED: 
 
That the Governance and Audit Committee noted the Internal Audit Progress 
Report. 

 
 

57. Internal Audit Follow Up Report 
 

The Auditor informed the Committee that a review was undertaken to follow up on 
progress made of previously implemented management actions. 
 

6



 
 

He further summarised that the 20 management actions considered comprised of 
11 medium and 9 low categorised priority actions. 
 
During discussion a Member asked when the new Head of Communications was 
expected to start their role? 
 
The Leader of the Council explained that the role was recently advertised and an 
interview process undertaken but this had not been successful.  The role was to be 
readvertised soon. 
 
A concern was raised about the perceived lack of progress confirmed within the 
Housing report. 
 
The Assistant Director of Housing informed the Committee that a new Voids policy 
had been adopted, following agreement by Cabinet and the process was supported 
by weekly management review meetings.  Voids Inspectors were in the process of 
training the staff involved. He confirmed that since November 2021, the number of 
Voids awaiting relet had fallen from 130 to 47 currently.  The Recharge policy was 
nearing completion and staff were trained in preparation for implementation. 
 
A Member asked if the original Housing Compliance targets were perhaps too 
optimistic and were the amended targets going to be met.  Concern was added that 
Officers may not have had the staff or support required to implement the required 
changes in a timely manner. 
 
The Assistant Director of Finance clarified that the Housing Compliance targets 
were set by management alongside the Auditors and while original targets had not 
been met, the follow up targets would be. 
 
The Chairman thanked the Internal Auditor on behalf of the Committee for all the 
work undertaken by RSM. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the Governance and Audit Committee noted the Internal Audit Follow Up 
Report. 
 

 
58. Counter Fraud Framework 

 
The Assistant Director of Finance presented a report reviewing the Counter Fraud 
Framework.  Within the report, key areas included were the Whistleblowing Policy, 
Fraud Response Plan and Anti-Money Laundering Policy.  The Framework was 
updated in conjunction with Lincolnshire Counter Fraud Partnership, hosted by 
Lincolnshire County Council.  A collaborative funding approach across Lincolnshire 
enabled consistency within the Framework going forward. 
 

7



 
 

It was confirmed that the Counter Fraud Strategy was integrated with the Corporate 
Plan.  The Whistleblowing Policy sets out the Council’s zero tolerance approach to 
fraud and the Counter Fraud Anti-Corruption Policy was a regulated requirement.  
The Assistant Director of Finance continued that the Statutory Officer Group met 
once a month to monitor any whistleblowing information received and to oversee 
the governance of the Authority. 
 
During discussion Members raised the following points: 
 

• It was noted that in general, cash payments over £1,000 would not be 
accepted.  A Member asked in what situation a cash payment of that amount 
or more would be offered in payment? 

 

• The Counter Fraud Framework document was very positively received by the 
Committee and the Governance and Risk Officer was thanked for their hard 
work.  A Member added that it was great to see positive changes as it was 
important to remember that the Council was looking after public funds. 

 

• A Member asked how often the Counter Fraud Framework procedure was 
reviewed and updated. 

 

• An explanation of how the Framework had recently led to a positive outcome 
was requested. 
 

The Assistant Director of Finance confirmed that while large cash payments were 
rarely received, they have happened.  It was explained that in the eviction process 
or council tax recovery, large amounts of debt could quickly accumulate and 
customers have presented large cash payments to stop recovery action.  The 
Council had detection processes in place to scrutinise large amounts of cash 
received in this way. 
 
The Governance and Risk Officer confirmed that the Counter Fraud Framework 
was constantly under review and updated regularly, generally every two years, to 
reflect changes in legislation. 
 
The Assistant Director of Finance gave the Committee an example of recent use of 
the Counter Fraud Framework, describing a recent fuel theft that had generated 
media interest.  It was confirmed that a call was made to the whistleblowing hotline 
in May 2020 and the incident was logged with Police a month later.  The case went 
to the CPS resulting in a sentence levied in December 2021.  The Officer continued 
that access to fuel was now limited and supervised and that CCTV cameras have 
been installed in the area where the fuel tank is situated.  Spot checks and tracking 
of fuel consumption was also supported by the Fleet Supervisor.  An improvement 
in culture has brought about a zero-tolerance approach to theft. 
 
The recommendation was proposed and seconded, following a vote it was 
AGREED. 

 

8



 
 

DECISION: 
 
That the Governance and Audit Committee approved the Counter Fraud 
Framework. 

 
59. Financial Management Code 

 
The Assistant Director of Finance informed the Committee that the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) had published its Financial 
Management Code, produced to assist local authorities in ensuring better 
prominence of financial management best practice.  An action plan was outlined 
against outstanding areas against the Code requirement following presentation to 
the Governance and Audit Committee at its meeting on 9 June 2021.  Six-monthly 
updates to the Committee were to continue to monitor progress. 
 
The Director continued that the focus was to be on the development of resilience to 
ensure financial sustainability, including a restriction on borrowing.  The process 
was to include the understanding of risk when working with multiple partners and 
sharing accountability. 
 
During discussion, the following points were raised: 

 

• A Member asked for a timeline on the actions within the report. 
 

• Is external benchmarking in place to ensure cost-effectiveness? 
 

The Assistant Director of Finance confirmed that six- monthly updates were set in 
place for presentation to the Governance and Audit Committee.   

 
AGREED: 
 
That the Governance and Audit Committee noted the progress made in 
respect of the Financial Management Code Action Plan. 
 

60. Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 
 

The Head of Finance and ICT presented a report to the Committee which provided 
a review of the treasury management activity to 30 September 2021 and the draft 
treasury management strategy statement 2022/2023.  Both reports confirmed the 
process to ensure the Council would meet the requirements of the CIPFA and the 
Prudential codes. 
 
The Officer continued that the report covered the borrowing activities of the Council, 
confirming no additional borrowing undertaken and loan information which included 
a breakdown of cash investments, made with advice from Link Treasury Solutions.  
Following changes to the Financial Code, updates were to be required quarterly 
going forward, no longer six-monthly.  The main change made to the strategy was 
that the borrowing indicators were amended to reflect the investment required for 

9



 
 

the Deepings Leisure Centre.  The Council was also required to have a Minimum 
Revenue Provision Statement which was also included within the report. 

 
Members raised the following points during discussion: 

 

• There was a substantial amount of funds in short-term investments so why 
were the Council considering borrowing? 

 

• Interest rates will start to rise soon, along with inflation.  What impact would 
that have on the Treasury Management Strategy? 

 
The Head of Finance confirmed that cash balances were constantly reviewed and it 
may be decided to internally borrow in the short term.  This was likely to secure the 
Council’s ability to borrow in the long term.  It was clarified that while interest rates 
remain low, investments were to be kept on a short-term basis.  Advice would be 
followed and it was possible during the current financial climate that the Council 
would cap the length of investments to ensure that improving investment rates 
could be accessed. 

 
The recommendations were proposed and seconded, following a vote it was 
AGREED. 
 
DECISIONS: 
 

1. That the Governance and Audit Committee noted and approved the 
contents of the mid-year review of treasury management activity for 
2021/22 

2. That the Governance and Audit Committee recommended to Council the 
2022/23 Treasury Management Strategy 

 
61. Planning Service Review - Progress Report 

 
The Assistant Chief Executive provided an update, requested by the Governance 
and Audit Committee on the progress of the Planning review undertaken in 2020.  
The report covered two areas – the Officer service delivery and good practice and 
also the protocols and processes of the Planning Committee. 
 
At a previous update, Members were considered to be broadly happy with the 
service delivery but there were concerns about the perceived lack of consultation 
with Members of the Planning Committee in particular.  The report informed 
Members of the consultation and engagement that had recently taken place, led by 
the Assistant Director of Planning. 
 
 
 
 
 

10



 
 

During discussion Members raised the following points: 
 

• It was noted that the report was very thorough and consultation process was 
productive.  The Assistant Director of Planning was thanked for their hard 
work. 

 

• The report stated lessons were learnt, how did this translate into practice? 
 

• Could Developers be enforced to adhere to conditions at an earlier opportunity 
within the process? 

 
The Assistant Director of Planning confirmed that the consultation was a team effort 
and best practice was considered alongside great engagement so as to enable real 
positive change.  They further clarified that enforcement, due to its nature is 
reactive not preventative.  Enforcement cannot happen until conditions have been 
unmet.  
 
The Leader of the Council added that there were likely to be challenges during the 
process but officers and members have been very proactive. 
 
AGREED: 

 
That the Governance and Audit Committee noted the Planning Review update 
and associated action plan. 
 

 
62. Work Programme 2021 - 2022 

 
The Committee considered the Work Programme for 2021 – 2022. 
 
The Chairman acknowledged that the agenda for the 16 March meeting had a lot of 
items and Members agreed that a report on Effectiveness and Terms of Reference 
could be put back to the autumn period and was to allow for consultation with 
incoming auditors.  However, contract procedure rules were to be added to the 
agenda so as to be in line with the Constitution review.  
 
A Member asked if general risk management could be included within the strategic 
risk item at the March meeting of the Committee. 
 
The Assistant Director of Finance confirmed the addition could be made.  He added 
that the agenda was already full but some of the scheduled reports may not appear 
in the context indicated and this was to be clarified before the next meeting. 

 
 

63. Any other business, which the chairman, by reasons of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent. 

 
There were no other items of business. 

11



 
 

 
64. Close of Meeting 

 
The Chairman closed the meeting at 15:59. 

 
 

12



Action Sheet 
To provide members with an update on actions agreed at the 26 January 2022 meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee.  

Min 
no.  

Agenda 
Item 

Action(s) Assigned to Comments/status Deadline 

55  Updates 
from 
previous 
meeting 

To share sample screenshots 
from the new ‘Propellor’ system 
which monitors our Housing 
Compliance functions. 
 

Craig Spence (Assistant 
Director of Housing 

Examples to be shared at 
March committee. 
 

16 March 
2022 

55  Updates 
from 
previous 
meeting 

Section 106 report update to be 
brought before Committee in six 
months 

Democratic Services Officer Added to Work Programme 
 

COMPLETE 

56 Internal 
Audit 
Progress 
Report 

Update to Committee Members 
of Members Development 
Programme – Training to be 
booked where required. 

Alan Robinson (Monitoring 
Officer) 

– Training to be booked 
where required. 

Ongoing 

  

13

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
South Kesteven District Council 
Internal Audit Progress Report 
 
Governance and Audit Committee meeting: 16 March 2022 
 
This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed.  
To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM UK Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no  
responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party. 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 1 of 11

15

A
genda Item

 5



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council Progress Report | 2 
    
 

Contents 
 

1 Key messages .................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 3 
2 Reports ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 4 
Appendix A – Progress against the internal audit plan 2021/22 ................................................................................................................................................................................ 5 
Appendix B – Other matters ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 6 
 

 

 

   

  

Page 2 of 11

16



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council Progress Report | 3 
    
 

1 Key messages 
The internal audit plan for 2021/22 was approved by the Governance and Audit Committee at the 18 March 2021 meeting. As the developments around Covid-19 continued to 
impact on all areas of the Council’s risk profile, we worked closely with management to deliver an internal audit programme which remained flexible and ‘agile’ to ensure it met 
your needs in the current circumstances.  
This report provides an update on progress against that plan and summarises the results of our work to date. 
 

 

Since the Governance and Audit Committee last met, we have finalised two reports: Continuous Assurance 4 and Follow Up 4. 
A summary of the outcome of the Continuous Assurance 4 is included at Section 2 and further details are appended to this report. [To discuss and accept] 

 

The Follow Up 4 report is issued as a separate agenda item and this review resulted in a ‘reasonable progress’ opinion being made to implement previously 
agreed actions. [To note] 

 

One change to the 2021/22 internal audit plan has occurred since the last committee meeting. As requested by the Assistant Director of Finance it was agreed 
to supersede Continuous Assurance 3 with the findings of Continuous Assurance 4 to present the current position and status of the controls as opposed to 
historic findings. See Appendix B for further details. [To note] 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 3 of 11

17



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council Progress Report | 4 
    
 

2 Reports 
2.1 Summary of final report being presented to this committee 
This section summarises the report that has been finalised since the last meeting.  

Assignment Opinion issued Actions agreed 
H M L 

Continuous Assurance 4 
The fourth continuous assurance review has been completed to provide assurance that the 10 
key controls agreed with management are in place and operating effectively. These controls are 
considered as non-negotiable areas of compliance, that management require assurance on 
throughout the year on their functionality and effectiveness.   

As a result of testing undertaken, three ‘low’ priority management actions were identified, and 
these have been agreed by management. The findings were in relation to the following areas: 
Planning Applications, Housing Repairs, and IT Access Controls.  

Further details are appended to this report. 

No opinions are issued for Continuous Assurance 
reviews 

0 0 3 

  

Page 4 of 11

18



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council Progress Report | 5 
    
 

Appendix A – Progress against the internal audit plan 2021/22 
Assignment  Status / Opinion issued Actions agreed Audit Date agreed with 

management 
Governance and Audit 

Committee meeting H M L 
Disabled Facilities Grant Final report issued / Substantial Assurance 0 0 0 20 May 2021 July 2021 
Continuous Assurance 1 Final report issued / No opinions are issued 

for Continuous Assurance reviews 
0 3 2 1 June 2021 July 2021 

Follow Up 1  Final report issued / Reasonable Progress 0 1 2   2 June 2021 July 2021 
Local Authority Searches Final report issued / Reasonable Assurance 0 2 1 21 June 2021 October 2021 
Income and Banking Final report issued / Partial Assurance 3 2 5 21 June 2021 October 2021 
Follow Up 2 Final report issued / Reasonable Progress 0 3 1 9 August 2021 October 2021 
Housing Compliance  Final report issued / Partial Assurance 2 4 0 16 August 2021 October 2021 
Continuous Assurance 2 Final report issued / No opinions are issued 

for Continuous Assurance reviews 
1 2 6 31 August 2021 October 2021 

Council Owned Companies Final report issued / No opinion issued for 
advisory reviews 

0 2 3 13 September 2021 December 2021 

Medium Term Financial Planning Final report issued / Substantial Assurance 0 0 2 27 September 2021 December 2021 
Follow Up 3 Final report issued / Little Progress 0 6 3 18 October 2021 December 2021 
Street Scene – Stock Removed from the audit plan, formed part of Follow Up 4. 22 November 2021 N/A 
Continuous Assurance 3 See changes to the audit plan below 15 November 2021 N/A 
Follow Up 4 Final report issued / Reasonable Progress 0 0 7 13 December 2021 March 2022 
Continuous Assurance 4 Final report issued / No opinions are issued 

for Continuous Assurance reviews 
0 0 3 7 February 2022 March 2022 

 
 

Page 5 of 11

19



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council Progress Report | 6 
    
 

Appendix B – Other matters 
Changes to the audit plan since the last Governance and Audit Committee meeting 
The current Covid-19 situation means that our clients and internal audit are working differently. We understand and recognise the Council’s strategic objectives, and that the 
developments around Covid-19 will continue to impact on all areas of the Council’s risk profile. We have worked work closely with management to deliver an internal audit 
programme which remained flexible and ‘agile’ to ensure it met your needs in the current circumstances. 

As requested by the Assistant Director of Finance it was agreed to supersede Continuous Assurance 3 with the findings of Continuous Assurance 4 to present the current 
position and status of the controls as opposed to historic findings. 

Page 6 of 11

20



 
 

  

 

 

rsmuk.com 
The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the 
weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Actions for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact. This report, or our work, should not 
be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of 
internal controls rests with management and our work should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist. Neither should our work be relied 
upon to identify all circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 

Our report is prepared solely for the confidential use of South Kesteven District Council and solely for the purposes set out herein. This report should not therefore be 
regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party wishing to acquire any rights from RSM UK Risk Assurance Services LLP for any purpose or in any context. 
Any third party which obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on it (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM 
UK Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or expense of 
whatsoever nature which is caused by any person’s reliance on representations in this report. 

This report is released to you on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as otherwise permitted by agreed written terms), without 
our prior written consent. 

 

For more information contact 
 
Rob Barnett, Head of Internal Audit  
Robert.Barnett@rsmuk.com  
07791 237 658 
 
Lisa Smith, Senior Manager   
Lisa.Smith@rsmuk.com   
07971 952 373 
 
 

Page 7 of 11

21



    

 
 

 

 

 
 

With the use of secure portals for the transfer of information, and through electronic communication means, remote working has meant that we have been able to 
complete our assignment and provide you with the assurances you require. It is these exceptional circumstances which mean that 100 per cent of our audit has been 
conducted remotely. Based on the information provided by you, we have been able to sample test, or complete full population testing using data analytics tools. 

Why we completed this audit 
A programme of Continuous Assurance of key controls has been undertaken as part of the approved Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22. This report covers the fourth 
cycle of testing in the financial year and has superseded the third visit. 

As part of the Internal Audit Plan, we agreed to visit several key areas over the financial year to provide a high-level assurance that key controls are in place and 
operating effectively in these areas. 

These controls are considered as non-negotiable areas of compliance, that management require assurance on throughout the year on their functionality and 
effectiveness.  

Findings and agreed actions are included within this report where we identified areas of non-compliance in three out of the ten controls tested. No issues were 
identified in relation to our testing of seven controls: Land Searches, Purchase Orders and Invoicing, Supplier Bank Accounts, Starters, Complaints, Service of 
Council Vehicles and Issue of Licenses.  

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY – CONTINUOUS ASSURANCE VISIT FOUR 

Page 8 of 11

22



 

 
 

 

2. FINDINGS AND ACTION PLAN 
Area Finding summary  Risk 

Context 
Actions for 
Management 

Action 
Owner 

Target 
Date 

Planning 
Applications 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Statutory determination times are 13 weeks for major 
applications, eight weeks for minor and other applications, 
and 16 weeks for applications subject to an Environmental 
Impact Assessment (EIA) or to an agreed extension of time. 

We received and reviewed the planning data for 1 
November 2021 to 31 January 2022 which detailed all 
applications for the period, the planning application 
determined and the average days of determination. 

We sampled 10 planning applications to confirm that they 
had been processed within the applicable timeframes and 
where deadlines had been exceeded, those extensions had 
been requested and granted ahead of time. Our testing 
confirmed that:  

• In five cases (four minor and one other), a decision 
was issued within the applicable determination time 
of eight weeks.  

• In the remaining five cases (minor), in four cases 
there were agreed extensions in place covering the 
period between exceeding the initial determination 
time and a decision being issued. In the remaining 
case it was confirmed that no extension had been 
requested. 

Low Management will ensure all 
extensions, where 
decisions are to exceed 
their initial determination 
time, are documented on 
email and attached to the 
document management 
system (DMS). 

 

Assistant 
Director of 
Planning 

31 May 2022 

 

 

Page 9 of 11

23



 

 
 

 

Area Finding summary  Risk 
Context 

Actions for 
Management 

Action 
Owner 

Target 
Date 

Housing Repairs 

 

 

 

 

 

Through testing a sample of 10 repair jobs raised between 
1 November 2021 to 31 January 2021.  

This confirmed that in all 10 instances jobs had been 
appropriately assigned and completed within the set 
KPI/target completion. 

We raised in the previous Continuous Assurance audit a 
management action for management to document its 
timeframes for completion of repair jobs in a formalised 
Repairs Policy. 

There is a risk that in the absence of documented repair 
timeframes, staff may be unaware of the requirements 
when booking jobs. 

Low Management will formally 
document repair timeframes 
via internal documentation 
such as a Repairs Policy. 

 

Head of 
Housing 

Technical 
Services  

31 May 2022 

  

Page 10 of 11

24



 

 
 

 

Area Finding summary  Risk 
Context 

Actions for 
Management 

Action 
Owner 

Target 
Date 

IT Access 
Controls 

 

 

 

 

 

From a sample of 10 new starters between 1 November 
2021 and 31 January 2022, we confirmed that an Active 
Directory account was created within the timescale required 
by the user.  

For a sample of 10 leavers between 1 November 2021 and 
31 January 2022, we were able to confirm that an Active 
Directory account was disabled in eight cases within 30 
days of the end date of employment. 

In one case there was no access in place to disable and in 
the remaining case it has been confirmed that IT were not 
notified to disable the access to the system. 

In relation to access to the finance system we confirmed 
that three employees within the sample had direct access to 
the system which identified in one case access was only 
removed at the time of conducting the sample testing. 

We confirmed with the IT Services Manager that there is a 
process in place whereby managers raise via the intranet 
notification of a leaver, which creates a ticket on the Help 
Desk. 

Low Management will ensure 
that access to systems is 
actively disabled within 30 
days of an employee 
leaving the Council. 

 

IT Services 
Manager 

 

31 May 2022 

 

Page 11 of 11

25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Follow Up 4 

Internal audit report 14.21/22 

FINAL 

1 February 2022 
This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM UK Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other 
party.  

27

A
genda Item

 6



    

 
 

   2
 

 

 

With the use of secure portals for the transfer of information, and through electronic communication means, remote working has meant that we have been able to 
complete our audit and provide you with the assurances you require. It is these exceptional circumstances which mean that 100 per cent of our audit has been 
conducted remotely. Based on the information provided by you, we have been able to sample test, or complete full population testing using data analytics tools. 

Background 
We have undertaken a review to follow up on progress made to implement the previously agreed management actions from the following audits: 

• 8.20/21 Street Scene – Stock Control; and 

• 13.20/21 Secure Remote Working and Operational Resilience. 

The 15 management actions considered in this review comprised of medium categorised priority actions. The focus of this review was to provide assurance that all 
actions previously agreed have been satisfactorily implemented.  

Conclusion  
Taking account of the issues identified in the remainder of the report and in line with our definitions set out in Appendix A, in our opinion South Kesteven District 
Council has demonstrated reasonable progress in implementing agreed management actions. Our testing has found that five actions have been fully 
implemented, seven actions have been partially implemented and three actions have been superseded.  

Further details of progress made are provided in this report. It is important to note that until a management action is fully implemented, the Council is still exposed 
to risk.  

  

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

28



    

 
 

   3
 

 

The following graph highlights the progress made on the actions that have been followed up. Five of the initial 20 actions followed up had no evidence provided by 
Action Owners and therefore have been excluded from our graph below. 

 

Further details of progress made are provided in this report. It is important to note that until a management action is fully implemented, the Council is still exposed 
to risk.  

  

0 1 2 3 4 5 6

8.20/21 Streetscene - Stock Control

13.20/21 Secure Remote Working and Operational Resilience

Not Implemented Implementation Ongoing Implemented (incl. superseded)

29



    

 
 

   4
 

 

Progress on actions 
The following table includes details of the status of each management action: 

 
Implementation status by review 

 
Number of 

actions 
agreed 

Status of management actions

Impl. (1) Impl. ongoing 
(2) 

Not impl. (3) Superseded 
(4) 

Confirmation as 
completed or no 
longer necessary 

(1)+(4) 

8.20/21 Street Scene – Stock Control 8 2 3 0 3 5 

13.20/21 Secure Remote Working and Operational 
Resilience 7 3 4 0 0 3 

Total 15 
 

5  
(33%) 

7 
(47%) 

0  
(0%) 

3 
(20%) 

8 
(53%) 

 

30



 

5 
 

 

2 FINDINGS AND MANAGEMENT ACTIONS 
Status Detail 

1 The entire action has been fully implemented. 
2 The action has been partly though not yet fully implemented. 
3 The action has not been implemented. 
4 The action has been superseded and is no longer applicable. 
5 The action is not yet due. 

 

8.20/21 Street Scene – Stock Control  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

Once the stock purchasing and control systems have been implemented:   
a)  Temporary procedural guidance notes on the use of the new system will be put into place.  
b)  The procedural guidance notes will be disseminated to all the relevant staff.  
c)  Training on the new stock control procedures will be provided to all the relevant staff. 
d)  Procedure guidance notes will be amended, and a final version produced when the system is fully embedded. 
 
Medium  

Audit finding 
/ status 

The final element of the Council’s stock purchasing and control system was implemented week commencing 13 December 2021. 
However, the system is currently being tested and finalised, ahead of a full go live; therefore, the implementation of this action is currently 
ongoing.  
2: The action has been partly though not yet fully implemented. 

Management 
Action 1 

Once the system has been fully embedded, the Council will ensure that: 
a)  Training on the new stock control procedures will be provided to all the 
relevant staff. 
b)  Procedure guidance notes will be created and disseminated to all staff. 
Management Update – This action is now complete. 

Responsible Owner:  
Transport Manager 

Date:  
31 January 
2022 

Priority: 
Low 

 

 

 

31



 

6 
 

 

8.20/21 Street Scene – Stock Control  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

Management will ensure that the stock control system being implemented will address the weakness identified in the control of stock at 
Street Scene. The expectation is that this will deliver efficiencies which will assist in funding the additional controls required. 
 
Medium  

Audit finding 
/ status 

The final element of the Council’s stock purchasing and control system was implemented week commencing 13 December 2021. 
However, the system is currently being tested and finalised, ahead of a full go live; therefore the implementation of this action is currently 
ongoing.  
2: The action has been partly though not yet fully implemented. 

Management 
Action 2 

Management will ensure that the stock control system being implemented 
will address the weakness identified in the control of stock at Street Scene. 
The expectation is that this will deliver efficiencies which will assist in 
funding the additional controls required. 
Management Update – This action is now complete. 

Responsible Owner:  
Transport Manager 

Date:  
31 January 
2022 

Priority: 
Low 

 

8.20/21 Street Scene – Stock Control  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

The system will manage parts returned to stock.  
a) When fully implemented  any part booked out but not allocated to a job will flag up. 
b) This new process will be communicated to all relevant staff. 
 
Medium  

Audit finding 
/ status 

The final element of the Council’s stock purchasing and control system was implemented week commencing 13 December 2021. 
However, the system is currently being tested and finalised, ahead of a full go live; therefore the implementation of this action is currently 
ongoing.  
2: The action has been partly though not yet fully implemented. 

Management 
Action 3 

The system will manage parts returned to stock:  
a) When the software is fully implemented  any part booked out but not 
allocated to a job will flag up. 
b) This new process will be communicated to all relevant staff. 

Responsible Owner:  
Transport Manager 

Date:  
31 January 
2022 

Priority: 
Low 

32



 

7 
 

 

8.20/21 Street Scene – Stock Control  
Management Update – This action is now complete. 

 

13.20/21 Secure Remote Working and Operational Resilience  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

Management will ensure that firewall rules are reviewed on a regular basis and enquire whether it is possible to configure a notification 
system to send email alerts when a change is made to the firewall rules or system settings.  
Additionally, formal change management principles should be applied to all changes to the firewall. 
 
Medium  

Audit finding 
/ status 

Discussions with the IT Services Manager identified that the Council’s firewalls were replaced in June 2021 and the notification system 
was amended to send email alerts when a change is made to the firewall rules or system settings, and only imported if required. It was 
also confirmed that a six monthly review has been scheduled to check this; and a change management module is currently being 
configured on the new helpdesk system, and all firewall changes will be recorded within this system.  
2: The action has been partly though not yet fully implemented. 

Management 
Action 4 

The Council will confirm that the management module has been fully 
implemented on the new helpdesk system, and all firewall changes are 
being recorded within this system. 

Responsible Owner:  
IT Services Manager 

Date:  
31 March 2022 

Priority: 
Low 

 

13.20/21 Secure Remote Working and Operational Resilience  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

Management will ensure that the Council formally documents an IT Management policy, security incident response procedures and 
response plans. This should outline, as a minimum: 
• The roles and responsibilities within IT; 
• Definitions of what constitutes an incident; 
• Explanation of how incidents are categorised and prioritised; 
• Mechanisms for reporting and responding to incidents; 
• Mechanisms for capturing the lessons learnt and feeding this back into the policy and processes. 
Management will ensure that once the Incident Response Plan is documented, it is tested annually, and the lessons learnt are captured 
and fed back into the process. 
Medium  

33



 

8 
 

 

13.20/21 Secure Remote Working and Operational Resilience  

Audit finding 
/ status 

Discussions with the IT Services Manager identified that the Council currently have an IT Security Policy, however this is not an 
overarching document that covers all security incident response procedures and response plans. Discussions also identified that the 
Council are currently looking at implementing a cyber incident policy, with support from a third party, as currently the Council lack the 
internal expertise to support this.   
2: The action has been partly though not yet fully implemented. 

Management 
Action 5 

The Council will review the current IT policies in place and assess for any 
gaps with regards to security incident response procedures and response 
plans; and where applicable, ensure that these are implemented. 

Responsible Owner:  
IT Services Manager 

Date:  
31 March 2022 

Priority: 
Low 

 

13.20/21 Secure Remote Working and Operational Resilience  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

A Change Management Policy and associated procedures will be documented, which outline what constitutes a formal change, an 
emergency change and approval requirements. In addition, the procedures will fully consider the impacts, risks and interdependencies of 
each change request. 
 
Medium  

Audit finding 
/ status 

We obtained a copy of the Council’s Change Management Policy and confirmed that this outlines what constitutes a formal change, an 
emergency change and approval requirements. This also documents the risks included within change requests; however the policy makes 
reference to a University and therefore requires review and formal approval, prior to this being published and communicated to staff. 
2: The action has been partly though not yet fully implemented. 

Management 
Action 6 

The Council will ensure the Change Management Policy is reviewed and 
approved and any references to Universities are removed, prior to this 
being issued to staff members. 

Responsible Owner:  
IT Services Manager 

Date:  
31 March 2022 

Priority: 
Low 

 

  

34



 

9 
 

 

13.20/21 Secure Remote Working and Operational Resilience  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

Management will ensure that all staff are required to complete training around cybersecurity and acceptable use of IT equipment on their 
induction and continuously throughout their employment. Once implemented, training compliance should be proactively monitored and 
escalated where appropriate. 
Management will consider performing annual phishing exercises to test user awareness and to ensure that they remain conscious of 
cybersecurity issues. 
Medium  

Audit finding 
/ status 

Through discussions with the IT Service Manager, it was confirmed that all staff within the Council had been issued a link to complete 
training relating to cyber security, from the National Cyber Security Centre. The Council are currently in the process of rolling out a new 
Learning Management System which will hold all IT training going forwards. Compliance can then be monitored through the system and 
refresher dates set. 
With regards to performing an annual phishing exercise to test user awareness and to ensure that they remain conscious of cybersecurity 
issues; we were advised that an executive decision had been made within the Council not to implement this action. 
2: The action has been partly though not yet fully implemented. 

Management 
Action 7 

Training compliance will be proactively monitored through the new Learning 
Management System with any non-compliance escalated to Line 
Managers. 

Responsible Owner:  
IT Services Manager 

Date:  
31 March 2022 

Priority: 
Low 

 

35



 

10 
 

 

APPENDIX A: DEFINITIONS FOR PROGRESS MADE 
The following opinions are given on the progress made in implementing actions. This opinion relates solely to the implementation of those actions followed up 
and does not reflect an opinion on the entire control environment. 

 Progress in 
implementing 
actions 

Overall number of 
actions fully 
implemented 

Consideration of high 
priority actions  

Consideration of medium 
priority actions 

Consideration of low priority 
actions 

Good 75% + None outstanding. None outstanding. 
All low actions outstanding are 
in the process of being 
implemented. 

Reasonable 51 – 75% None outstanding. 
75% of medium actions made 
are in the process of being 
implemented. 

75% of low actions made are 
in the process of being 
implemented. 

Little 30 – 50% 
All high actions outstanding 
are in the process of being 
implemented. 

50% of medium actions made 
are in the process of being 
implemented. 

50% of low actions made are 
in the process of being 
implemented. 

Poor < 30% 
Unsatisfactory progress has 
been made to implement 
high priority actions. 

Unsatisfactory progress has 
been made to implement 
medium actions.  

Unsatisfactory progress has 
been made to implement low 
actions. 

36



 

11 
 

 

APPENDIX B: ACTIONS COMPLETED OR SUPERSEDED  
From the testing conducted during this review we have found the following actions to have been fully implemented and superseded.  

Assignment title Management actions
8.20/21 Street Scene – Stock 
Control 

Implemented  
A Stock Control Framework will be put into place outlining the Council’s approach to stock control.  
 
The Framework will be maintained up to date and made available to all to the relevant staff.  
 
Priority: Medium

8.20/21 Street Scene – Stock 
Control 

Superseded  
The additional costs of implementing a store person and associated stock takes needs to be financially 
evaluated.  
 
Once the systems are fully embedded, we will be in a better position to decide what the most appropriate stock 
check process will be. 
 
For Street Scene stock we will consider:   
 
a) The type of stock counts for example full stock counts, blind counts etc. and the frequency of the stock 
counts will be agreed.     
 
b) Stock counts will be undertaken in accordance to the type and frequency of stock counts.  
 
c) Tolerance levels will be agreed.    
 
After the stocktaking, a review / investigation will take place on the stock variances identified. 
 
Priority: Medium

8.20/21 Streetscene – Stock 
Control 

Superseded 
a) The reconciliation of the stock count to the stock recorded on the stock management system will be 
completed for SKDC owned stock.   
 
b) Any errors/ omissions/ variances will be investigated. 
 
Priority: Medium

37



 

12 
 

 

Assignment title Management actions

8.20/21 Streetscene – Stock 
Control 

Superseded 
a) Procedures for write-off of obsolete/ damaged stock will be put in place.  
 
b) Any identified obsoleted stock will be written off and go through the relevant write off approval process. 
 
Priority: Medium

8.20/21 Streetscene – Stock 
Control 

Implemented  
An evaluation of the costs of implementing additional physical controls and security compared to the benefits 
gained needs to be undertaken. 
 
Once the new systems are fully embedded and the most appropriate stock levels have been agreed:  
 
a) The Council will review its security arrangements for the stock area with a view of restricting access to the 
stock and to the stock area.  
 
b) The value for money of any potential security measures will be considered taking into account the cost of 
the measures versus the potential losses due to not having them.   
 
Once agreed any new security arrangements will be put into place and enforced.  
 
The Council no longer holds stock following the change to Fleet Factors as the sole supplier. 
 
Priority: Medium

13.20/21 Secure Remote Working 
and Operational Resilience 

Implemented  
Management will ensure that regular periodic audits of privileged access will be completed in order to confirm 
access is commensurate with roles and responsibilities.  
 
Priority: Medium 

13.20/21 Secure Remote Working 
and Operational Resilience 

Implemented  
Management will ensure that regular periodic audits of privileged access will be completed in order to confirm 
access is commensurate with roles and responsibilities. 
 
Priority: Medium 

38



 

13 
 

 

Assignment title Management actions
13.20/21 Secure Remote Working 
and Operational Resilience 

Implemented  
Management will ensure that the process and associated security practices and standards for provisioning 
access to the Council’s network for third parties are formally documented.  
 
Management will perform a quarterly review over third party access to ensure that third party network access 
in excess of required timeframes is investigated. 
 
Priority: Low

  

39



 

14 
 

 

APPENDIX C: SCOPE 
The scope below is a copy of the original document issued. 

Objectives relevant to the scope of the review 
The internal audit assignment has been scoped to provide assurance on how South Kesteven District Council manages the following objective: 

Objective of the area under review 

To meet internal auditing standards, and to provide assurance on action taken to address management actions 
previously agreed by management. 

Scope of the review 
The following areas will be considered as part of the review: 
As part of the approved internal audit periodic plan, we will review the 15 ‘Medium’ management actions agreed in the following Internal Audit reviews: 

• 8.20/21 Street Scene – Stock Control; and 

• 13.20/21 Secure Remote Working and Operational Resilience. 

As part of our audit work, we will carry out testing to confirm implementation of 'Medium' priority management actions but will only obtain management 
confirmation on the progress made with the ‘Low’ priority management actions.  

The following limitations apply to the scope of our work: 

• Detailed testing will only be carried out on the medium priority management actions; 
• We will obtain a management update in relation to low priority management actions, but no detailed testing will be carried out; 
• We will not review the whole control framework of the areas listed above. Therefore, we are not providing assurance on the entire risk and control 

framework of these areas; 
• Testing will be completed, where appropriate, on a sample basis over the period since actions were implemented or controls enhanced; and 
• Our work does not provide absolute assurance that material errors, loss or fraud do not exist. 

 

40



 

rsmuk.com 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the 
weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Actions for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact. This report, or our work, should 
not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system 
of internal controls rests with management and our work should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist. Neither should our work be 
relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 

Our report is prepared solely for the confidential use of South Kesteven District Council, and solely for the purposes set out herein. This report should not therefore be 
regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party wishing to acquire any rights from RSM UK Risk Assurance Services LLP for any purpose or in any 
context. Any third party which obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on it (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by 
law, RSM UK Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage 
or expense of whatsoever nature which is caused by any person’s reliance on representations in this report. 

This report is released to you on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as otherwise permitted by agreed written terms), 
without our prior written consent. 

We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.  

RSM UK Risk Assurance Services LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales no. OC389499 at 6th floor, 25 Farringdon Street, London EC4A 
4AB. 

 Debrief held  
Draft report issued 

20 December 2021 
22 December 2021

Internal audit Contacts Robert Barnett, Head of Internal Audit 
Robert.Barnett@rsmuk.com 
07809 560103 
 
Lisa Smith, Senior Manager 
Lisa.Smith@rsmuk.com 
07436 268746 
 
Aaron Macdonald, Assistant Manager 
Aaron.Macdonald@rsmuk.com 
0115 964 4450 

Responses received 31 January 2022
Final report issued  1 February 2022 

 Client sponsor Richard Wyles, Assistant Director of Finance   
Distribution Richard Wyles, Assistant Director of Finance  

Tracey Elliot, Governance and Risk Officer 

41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Governance and Audit 
Committee 
16 March 2022 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 

Deputy Leader of the Council 
   

         
  

Draft Internal Audit Annual Report 2021/22   
In accordance with the terms of reference of the Committee one of the key areas for the 
Committee is to monitor the audit activity on behalf of the Council.  This includes receiving the 
annual report and opinion from the Head of Internal Audit. 
 
The annual report is presented as a draft and will be finalised on 1 April 2022 if there are no 
further changes that may have an impact on the opinion. 

Report Author 

Tracey Elliott (Governance & Risk Officer) 

 
 01476 406038 

  t.elliott@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright (Head of Finance & ICT)  3 March 2022 

Approved by: Richard Wyles (Interim Chief Finance Officer) 4 March 2022 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes (Deputy Leader of the 
Council) 

8 March 2022 

 

Recommendation to the decision maker 

1. Governance and Audit Committee is asked to consider and accept the Internal 
Audit Annual Report for 2021/22. 

 

43

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 In accordance with its terms of reference, Governance and Audit Committee is asked to 

receive, consider and accept the Draft Internal Audit Annual Report and the annual 

opinion.  The Internal Auditor’s report is appended to this covering report.   

1.2 The annual audit plan for 2021/22 was approved by the Committee on 18 March 2021.   

1.3 Summary of audits undertaken, by assurance level, in 2021/22 alongside 2020/21: 

Year 
Minimal 

assurance 
Partial 

assurance 
Reasonable 
assurance 

Substantial 
assurance 

No 
assurance 
required 

Total 

2020/21 2 3 2 1 5 13 

2021/22 0 2 1 2 8 13 

1.4 This summary shows that significant improvement has been made to improving the 

internal control framework; for 2021/22 there were no minimal assurance reports, a 

reduction in the number of partial assurance reports and an increase in the number of 

substantial assurance reports.  The Committee will be keen to ensure that this positive 

direction of travel continues with Assurance Lincolnshire (as the Council’s new internal 

audit team) from 2022/23. 

1.5 The table below provides a summary of the audit activity for 2021/22 – the Head of 

Internal Audit will provide further details during the presentation of their report.  

Audit Assurance level 
Management actions 

Total 
L M H n/a 

Disabled Facilities Grants Substantial assurance - - - - - 

Follow Up 2  Reasonable progress 2 1 - 6 9 

Continuous Assurance Visit 1 n/a 2 3 - - 5 

Local Authority Searches Reasonable assurance 1 2 - - 3 

Follow Up 2 Reasonable progress 1 3 - - 4 

Housing Compliance Partial assurance - 4 2 - 6 

Continuous Assurance Visit 2 n/a 6 2 1 - 9 

Income and Banking Partial assurance 5 2 3 - 10 

Council Owned Companies Advisory 3 2 - - 5 

Medium Term Financial Planning Substantial assurance 2 - - - 2 

Follow Up 3 Little progress 3 6 - - 9 

Follow Up 4 Reasonable progress 7 - - - 7 

Continuous Assurance Visit 4 n/a 3 - - - 3 

 Total 35 25 6 6 72 

 

44



 

 
 

1.6 All actions are now actively monitored by the use of hosted software (4action).  The 

system allows the responsible officers to manage their implementation plans, alongside 

the agreed timescales, and enables the Council to ensure all actions are monitored and 

can then be reported to the Committee in a timely fashion.  The management and 

monitoring of actions will be supported by the internal audit follow up arrangements.   

1.7 The status of implementation of actions is shown in the table below.  Where internal 

actions have been followed up, the status is captured within the original internal audit 

action.   

Audits 2020-21 Assurance level 
Total of 
Actions 

In 
progress 

Complete or 
superseded 

Business Continuity  Substantial assurance 2 2  

Consultants and Agency Workers Reasonable assurance 7 1 6 

Contracts and Procurement Partial assurance 8 4 4 

GDPR – Post Implementation n/a 8 5 3 

Housing Compliance 1 Minimal assurance 16  16 

Housing Compliance 2 n/a 9  9 

IT – Secure Remote Working Partial assurance 7 2 5 

Rent Collection and Arrears Reasonable assurance 3 2 1 

Repairs – Control of stock Minimal assurance 9  9 

S106 Agreements Partial assurance 5  5 

Street Scene – Control of stock n/a 8  8 

Audits 2021-22 Assurance level Total 
In 

progress 
Complete or 
superseded 

Continuous Assurance 1 n/a 5  5 

Continuous Assurance 2 n/a 9  9 

Continuous Assurance 4 n/a 3 3  

Council Owned Companies n/a 5 5  

Disabled Facilities Grants Substantial assurance - - - 

Housing Compliance 3 Partial assurance 6 6  

Income and Banking Partial assurance 8 4 4 

Local Authority Searches Reasonable assurance 3 2 1 

Medium Term Financial Plan Substantial assurance 2 2  

Total  123 38 85 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 None. 

3 Reasons for the Recommendation 

3.1 Governance and Audit Committee, as part of its terms of reference, is required to consider 

and accept the internal audit annual report. 

45



 

 
 

4 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

4.1 N/A 

5 Financial Implications  

5.1 These are contained within the report where appropriate. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Assistant Director of Finance 

6 Legal and Governance Implications  

6.1 The Internal Audit Annual Report and the Head of Internal Auditor’s annual opinion is an 

important aspect of the Council’s overall risk and governance assurance framework and 

provides the Committee with the opportunity to focus on areas for improvement. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Head of Democratic Services and 

Deputy Monitoring Officer 

7 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

7.1 None. 

8 Risk and Mitigation 

8.1 These are contained within the report where appropriate. 

9 Community Safety Implications  

9.1 None. 

10 Background Papers 

10.1 None. 

11 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a ‘climate emergency’? 

The recommendation will have a neutral effect on the Council’s declaration of a climate 

emergency. 

12 Appendices 

12.1 Appendix A – Draft Internal Audit Annual Report 2021/22 

 

 

46



 

 

 

 
 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Annual internal audit report 2021/22  

Draft  

16 March 2022 
This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM UK Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other 
party.  

47



    

 
 

   2
 

 

 

This report provides an annual internal audit opinion, based upon and limited to the work performed, on the overall adequacy and effectiveness 
of the organisation’s risk management, control and governance processes. The opinion should contribute to the organisation's annual 
governance reporting. 

The opinion  
For the 12 months ended 31 March 2022 the Head of Internal Audit opinion for 
South Kesteven District Council is as follows: 

 

Please see appendix A for the full range of annual opinions available to us in 
preparing this report and opinion.  

It remains management’s responsibility to develop and 
maintain a sound system of risk management, internal 

control and governance, and for the prevention and 
detection of material errors, loss or fraud. The work of 

internal audit should not be a substitute for management 
responsibility around the design and effective operation of 

these systems. 

Scope and limitations of our work 
The formation of our draft opinion is achieved through a risk-based plan of 
work, agreed with management and approved by the Governance and Audit 
Committee, our opinion is subject to inherent limitations, as detailed below: 

• Internal audit has not reviewed all risks and assurances relating to the 
organisation;  

• The opinion is substantially derived from the conduct of risk-based plans 
generated from a robust and organisation-led assurance framework. The 
assurance framework is one component that the Council takes into 
account in making its Annual Governance Statement (AGS); 

• The opinion is based on the findings and conclusions from the work 
undertaken, the scope of which has been agreed with management; 

• Where strong levels of control have been identified, there are still 
instances where these may not always be effective. This may be due to 
human error, incorrect management judgement, management override, 
controls being by-passed or a reduction in compliance;  

• Due to the limited scope of our audits, there may be weaknesses in the 
control system which we are not aware of, or which were not brought to 
our attention; and 

• Our internal audit work for 2021/22 has continued to be undertaken 
through the operational disruptions caused by the Covid-19 pandemic. In 
undertaking our audit work, we recognise that there has been some 
impact on both the operations of the organisation and its risk profile; and 
our annual opinion should be read in this context. 

THE ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT OPINION 

48



 

3 
 

 

FACTORS AND FINDINGS WHICH HAVE INFORMED OUR OPINION 

 

We have taken into consideration the governance 
and oversight related elements of each of the 
reviews undertaken as part of the 2021/22 internal 
audit plan.  

There is a sound governance framework in place, 
and we have observed that the Governance and 
Audit Committee is effective in monitoring and 
challenging management and holding them to 
account. 

 

 

Our risk management opinion is informed by our 
observation of risk management systems and 
processes throughout the course of all audits within 
the Audit Plan.  

The Strategic Risk Register contains those risks 
which may impact achievement of the Council’s 
strategic objectives, detailing the risk driver, the 
effect if the risk is not managed and the risk 
appetite. There are seven strategic risks and for 
each one there is a summary of why they are a 
strategic risk, current circumstances, effects of risk 
realisation, existing controls and actions to be taken 
to enhance or expand those controls.  The risks are 
discussed and reviewed by Corporate Management 
Team and a biannual report is presented to the 
Governance and Audit Committee 

 

We undertook five internal audit reviews in 2021/22 
which resulted in an assurance opinion. There 
were two reviews (40%) from which the Council 
could take substantial assurance, one review 
(20%) from which the Council could take 
reasonable assurance, two reviews (40%) from 
which the Council could take partial assurance. 

During the year we raised a total of 73 
management actions across assurance, advisory 
and follow up reviews. Of the 73 actions raised: six 
(8%) were ‘high’ priority,  26 (36%) were ‘medium’ 
priority, 35 (48%) were ‘low’ priority and six (8%) 
were ‘not classified’. A total of 17 of these came 
from our three Continuous Assurance Visits. These 
controls are deemed as non-negotiable areas of 
compliance, that management require assurance 
on throughout the year on their functionality and 
effectiveness. 

  

Governance Risk Management Internal Control

49



 

4 
 

 

Details of the reviews where either reasonable or partial assurance could be taken are as follows: 

Local Authority Searches (5.21/22) – reasonable 
assurance 

Housing Compliance – Gas, Electrical, Legionella, 
Asbestos and Fire Safety (7.21/22) – partial 
assurance 

Income and Banking (9.21/22) – partial assurance 

This review identified that controls were 
adequately designed and operating effectively.  

At the time of the audit however, the average time 
taken on searches was 22 working days with the 
government target set at 10 working days. This 
control was tested as part of the Continuous 
Assurance reviews and improvements had been 
identified in this turnaround time since this review 
was conducted. 

Although this review confirmed the Council had 
strengthened their control framework over the prior 
12 months since the no assurance opinion was 
issued in 2020/21, significant gaps still remained in 
the design and adherence to controls.  

The high risk areas related to delivery of training 
and the backlog of the electrical testing programme

This review identified gaps in the design and 
adherence to controls in place.  

The high risk areas related to the absence of 
controls around reconciling cash collections, 
security of cash taken from markets and safe 
storage of cheques at the Council. 

A summary of internal audit work undertaken, and the resulting conclusions, is provided at appendix B. 

Topics judged relevant for consideration as part of the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 
There were two areas (Housing Compliance, and Income and Banking), as detailed in Appendix B where only partial assurance could be taken over the 
effectiveness of controls in place. The AGS should therefore include appropriate detail regarding the weaknesses identified and any actions that have already 
been taken by the Council to address the issues identified as part of audits where no, or partial assurance had been provided. 

The AGS should also consider the current COVID19 pandemic and its impact on the operations of the Council. 

50



 

5 
 

 

As well as those headlines previously discussed, the following areas have helped to inform our opinion. A summary of internal audit work 
undertaken, and the resulting conclusions, is provided at appendix B. 

Acceptance of internal audit management actions 
Management have agreed actions to address most of the findings reported by the internal audit service during 2021/22. This is with the exception of two 
findings raised as part of the Income and Banking review where management did not consider there to be a risk and therefore no action was deemed 
necessary. These related to receiving and processing of cheques, and the safe storage of cheques. In forming our opinion we have not placed any direct 
reliance on other assurance providers.   

Implementation of internal audit management actions 
Where actions have been agreed by management, these have been monitored by management through the action tracking process in place (4Action). During 
the year progress has been reported to the Governance and Audit Committee, with the validation of the action status confirmed by internal audit through four 
follow up reviews. 

Our follow up of the actions agreed to address previous years' internal audit findings shows that the Council had made reasonable progress in three of the 
reviews, and little progress in the remaining follow up. 

 

Working with other assurance providers 
In forming our opinion we have not placed any direct reliance on other assurance providers.   

0

5

10

15

20

25

High Medium Low Not Categorised

Follow Up Status By Priority

Implemented/Superseded

Implementation Ongoing
Not Implemented

THE BASIS OF OUR INTERNAL AUDIT OPINION

51



 

6 
 

 

Conflicts of interest  
RSM has not undertaken any work or activity during 2021/22 that would lead us to declare any conflict of interest. 

Conformance with internal auditing standards 
RSM affirms that our internal audit services are designed to conform to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  

Under PSIAS, internal audit services are required to have an external quality assessment every five years. Our risk assurance service line commissioned an 
external independent review of our internal audit services in 2021 to provide assurance whether our approach meets the requirements of the International 
Professional Practices Framework (IPPF), and the Internal Audit Code of Practice, as published by the Global Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) and the 
Chartered IIA, on which PSIAS is based.   

The external review concluded that RSM ‘generally conforms* to the requirements of the IIA Standards’ and that ‘RSM IA also generally conforms with the 
other Professional Standards and the IIA Code of Ethics. There were no instances of non-conformance with any of the Professional Standards’. 

* The rating of ‘generally conforms’ is the highest rating that can be achieved, in line with the IIA’s EQA assessment model. 

Quality assurance and continual improvement 
To ensure that RSM remains compliant with the PSIAS framework we have a dedicated internal Quality Assurance Team who undertake a programme of 
reviews to ensure the quality of our audit assignments. This is applicable to all Heads of Internal Audit, where a sample of their clients will be reviewed. Any 
findings from these reviews are used to inform the training needs of our audit teams. 

Resulting from the programme in 2021/22, there are no areas which we believe warrant flagging to your attention as impacting on the quality of the service 
we provide to you. 

In addition to this, any feedback we receive from our post assignment surveys, client feedback, appraisal processes and training needs assessments is also 
taken into consideration to continually improve the service we provide and inform any training requirements. 

  

OUR PERFORMANCE 

52



 

7 
 

 

Performance indicators 
Delivery     Quality     

  Target Actual   Target Actual 

Audits commenced in line with original timescales* Yes Yes Conformance with PSIAS and IIA Standards Yes Yes 

Draft reports issued within 10 days of debrief 
meeting 

100% 6 Liaison with external audit to allow, where 
appropriate and required, the external auditor to 
place reliance on the work of internal audit 

Yes N/A 

Management responses received within 10 days of 
draft report 

100% 14 Response time for all general enquiries for 
assistance 

2 working days Yes 

Final report issued within 3 days of management 
response 

100% 1 Response for emergencies and potential fraud 1 working day N/A 

 

* This takes into account changes agreed by management and the Governance and Audit Committee during the year; reflecting our ‘agile’ / ‘flexible’ approach 
to our service delivery. 

53



 

8 
 

 

 

The following shows the full range of opinions available to us within our internal audit methodology to provide you with context regarding 
your annual internal audit opinion. 

Annual opinions Factors influencing our opinion 

The factors which are considered when influencing our opinion are: 
• inherent risk in the area being audited; 
• limitations in the individual audit assignments; 
• the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and / or 

governance control framework; 
• the impact of weakness identified; 
• the level of risk exposure; and 
• the response to management actions raised and timeliness of 

actions taken. 

APPENDIX A: ANNUAL OPINIONS

54



 

9 
 

 

All of the assurance levels and outcomes provided above should be considered in the context of the scope, and the limitation of scope, 
set out in the individual assignment report. 

Assignment Executive lead Assurance level Actions agreed 

L M H N/A 

Disabled Facilities Grants (2.21/22) Director of Finance 

 

0 0 0 0 

Follow Up (3.21/22) Director of Finance Reasonable Progress 2 1 0 6 

Continuous Assurance Visit 1 (4.21/22) Director of Finance No opinion provided for 
Continuous Assurance 2 3 0 0 

Local Authority Searches (5.21/22) Deputy Chief Executive 

 

1 2 0 0 

Follow Up 2 (6.21/22) Director of Finance Reasonable Progress 1 3 0 0 

Housing Compliance – Gas, Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos 
and Fire Safety (7.21/22) Director of Housing and Property 

 

0 4 2 0 

Continuous Assurance Visit 2 (8.21/22) Director of Finance No opinion provided for 
Continuous Assurance 6 2 1 0 

Income and Banking (9.21/22) Director of Finance 

 

5 2 3 0 

Council Owned Companies (10.21/22) Director of Finance Advisory Review 3 2 0 0 

APPENDIX B: SUMMARY OF INTERNAL AUDIT WORK COMPLETED 
2021/22 

55



 

10 
 

 

Assignment Executive lead Assurance level Actions agreed 

L M H N/A 

Medium Term Financial Plan (11.21/22) Director of Finance 

 

2 0 0 0 

Follow Up 3 (12.21/22) Director of Finance Little Progress 3 6 0 0 

Follow Up 4 (14.21/22) Director of Finance Reasonable Progress 7 0 0 0 

Continuous Assurance 4 (15.21/22) Director of Finance No opinion provided for 
Continuous Assurance 3 0 0 0 

 

56



 

11 
 

 

 

We use the following levels of opinion classification within our internal audit reports, reflecting the level of assurance the board can take: 

 

 

Taking account of the issues identified, the board cannot take assurance that 
the controls upon which the organisation relies to manage this risk are 
suitably designed, consistently applied or effective.  

Urgent action is needed to strengthen the control framework to manage the 
identified risk(s). 

 

 

Taking account of the issues identified, the board can take partial assurance 
that the controls upon which the organisation relies to manage this risk are 
suitably designed, consistently applied or effective.  

Action is needed to strengthen the control framework to manage the 
identified risk(s). 

 

 

Taking account of the issues identified, the board can take reasonable 
assurance that the controls upon which the organisation relies to manage this 
risk are suitably designed, consistently applied and effective.  

However, we have identified issues that need to be addressed in order to 
ensure that the control framework is effective in managing the identified 
risk(s). 

 

 

Taking account of the issues identified, the board can take substantial 
assurance that the controls upon which the organisation relies to manage this 
risk are suitably designed, consistently applied and effective. 

APPENDIX C: OPINION CLASSIFICATION  

57



 

12 
 

 

YOUR INTERNAL AUDIT TEAM  
Rob Barnett, Head of Internal Audit  
Robert.Barnett@rsmuk.com  
07791 237 658 
 
Lisa Smith, Senior Manager   
Lisa.Smith@rsmuk.com   
07971 952 373 
 

 

58



 

rsmuk.com 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the 
weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Actions for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact.  This report, or our work, should 
not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system 
of internal controls rests with management and our work should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist.  Neither should our work be 
relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 

Our report is prepared solely for the confidential use of South Kesteven District Council, and solely for the purposes set out herein. This report should not therefore be 
regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party wishing to acquire any rights from RSM UK Risk Assurance Services LLP for any purpose or in any 
context. Any third party which obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on it (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by 
law, RSM UK Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage 
or expense of whatsoever nature which is caused by any person’s reliance on representations in this report. 

This report is released to you on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as otherwise permitted by agreed written terms), 
without our prior written consent. 

We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.  

RSM UK Risk Assurance Services LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales no. OC389499 at 6th floor, 25 Farringdon Street, London EC4A 
4AB. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

59



T
his page is intentionally left blank



                                                                    

Draft Internal 

Audit Plan 

2022/23 

 

South Kesteven District Council 

16 March 2022 

 

                                                                                                                                      
61

Agenda Item 8



                                                                    

Assurance Lincolnshire – Draft Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 

Introduction 

This report sets out the Internal Audit Plan as at 1 April 2022.  The plan details the activities 

to be audited and the indicative scope for each audit.  This draft plan gives you an 

opportunity to comment on the plan and the priorities that we have established.  

Our audit plan delivers assurance within agreed resources. The plan is amended throughout 

the year to reflect changing assurance needs and we propose to revisit the plan after 6 

months to confirm that the remaining audits remain key priorities for the Authority and key 

sources of assurance.  

Developing the Plan  

The internal audit plan has been developed using various sources including our external 

intelligence, local knowledge and the meetings held with key staff.   

We have prioritised our audit work taking account of the impact an activity will have on the 

Council if it fails.  The criteria for determining priority are:  

▪ Significance – how important is the activity to the Council in achieving its objectives, 

key plans and in managing its key risks.  We look at both financial loss and strategic 

impact. 

 

▪ Sensitivity – how much interest would there be if things went wrong and what would be 

the reputational and political impact. 

 

▪ Level of Assurance – we assess the current level of assurance evaluating reliability 

and contribution to the Head of Internal Audit annual opinion on governance, risk and 

control. 

 

▪ Time – when it will happen (this will determine the best time to do the Audit). 

 
 

Updating the Plan 

Through the year we will liaise with the Council and collect business intelligence that 

identifies emerging audits which could be included in the plan according to priority.  

The primary source of business intelligence will be the regular liaison meetings between our 

team and the nominated liaison contact, other sources of intelligence will include: 

▪ Committee reports 

▪ Performance and Risk 

▪ Key stakeholders 

 

 

62



                                                                    

Delivering the Plan 

The audit plan has been developed to enable us to respond to changes during the year.  

Whilst every effort will be made to deliver the plan, we recognise that we need to be flexible 

and prepared to revise audit activity – responding to changing circumstances or emerging 

risks.  The plan is therefore a statement of intent – our liaison meetings with senior 

management will enable us to firm up audit activity during the year. 

The aim is to deliver the audits included in the plan in accordance with the schedule which 

will be devised once the plan is agreed.  The schedule will be drawn up following liaison with 

the various auditees and Assistant Directors.  Resources will then be allocated accordingly 

to the audits at the specified times.  It is therefore important that any changes required to the 

audits or the schedule are notified to Internal Audit as soon as possible to avoid abortive 

time being spent on audits and for us to reallocate resources. 

The core team who will be delivering your Internal Audit plan are:  

Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management 
Lucy Pledge 
 07557 498932 

 lucy.pledge@lincolnshire.gov.uk  
 
Audit Manager 
Emma Bee  

 emma.bee@lincolnshire.gov.uk 
 
Principal Auditor 
Alastair Simson 

 alastair.simson@lincolnshire.gov.uk  
 
We will be using Senior Auditors from our Team to support the completion of the plan. 

 

Annual Internal Audit Opinion  

We are satisfied that the level and mix of resources, together with the areas covered in the 

plan, will enable the Head of Internal Audit to provide their annual internal audit opinion. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

63

mailto:lucy.pledge@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:emma.bee@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:alastair.simson@lincolnshire.gov.uk


                                                                    

Proposed Plan 

 

Audit Area 

 

Assurance Sought 

Financial Governance 

Key Control 
Testing 
 

Delivery of key control testing to enable Head of Internal Audit to form 

an opinion on the Council’s financial control environment. 

Terms of Reference which include scope and focus on key risks will be 

determined with the appropriate senior manager.  

Governance and Risk 

Good Governance 

Phase 1 and 

Decision Making 

 

To provide assurance that the Council has a robust Governance 

Framework in place that aligns to best practice (CIPFA / SOLACE 

‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government’ – issued 2016. 

Note: This will include transparency code and compliance. 

Benchmarking against the 7 good governance principles and the 

principles and the Governance Risk Resilience Framework – issued by 

the Centre for Governance & Scrutiny – issued 2021.   

Phase 2 – Governance Review – Culture and Values.  Providing 

assurance on how the Council’s governance arrangements work in 

practice (2023/24). 

This will also cover the decision making processes. 

Risk Management 

 

To review the effectiveness of the risk management arrangements 

including: 

• Leadership & Management 

• Strategy and Policy 

• People – Risk Culture 

• Partnerships (shared risks and resources) 

• Processes 

• Risk Handling & Assurance 

• Outcomes & Delivery 

• Using risk maturity model 
 

Health and Safety  

 

To review the effectiveness of the Council’s health and safety 

arrangements including: 

• Governance & Oversight 

• Compliance 

• Processes  

• Risk Assessment and Assurance 

• Reporting and monitoring  

• Measuring performance  

64



                                                                    

Programme 

Management  

Review of the programme and project management procedures in place 

to provide management with assurance that a robust and consistent 

approach is being followed. This will be an advisory review. 

Critical Activities 

Housing Void 

Management  

Review of the governance and procedures in place to monitor, manage 

and report housing voids 

Housing Income 

Management 

Review of the governance and procedures in place to monitor, manage 

and report housing income 

HRA Building 

Programme 

Assurance over the Housing Revenue Account building programme 

processes and procedures  

ICT 

Cyber Security 

 

The National Cyber Security Centre NCSC) has identified 10 steps for 

cyber security to help organisations manage cyber risks.  The review 

will cover these 10 steps, albeit at a high level, with a view to 

confirming that appropriate consideration has been given to these 

areas. 

 

Additional Work 

Follow Up 
 
 

To provide management with assurance that actions from previous key 
audits have been implemented and this has led to improved outcomes. 

Total days – 112 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Other Activities  
 

 

Advice and liaison (to include 

meeting key staff and Senior 

Management) 

 

Annual Report  

Governance & Audit Committee  

Review IA Strategy and Planning  

Days  30 

65



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Governance and Audit 
Committee 

16 March 2022 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 
  Deputy Leader of the Council 

         
 

 

 

2021/22 Accounting Policies and changes to the 
deadline for the publication of the Statement of 
Accounts 

The Council’s Accounting Policies are reviewed annually, prior to the preparation of the Statement 
of Accounts, to ensure that they are up to date and in line with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (The Code). 
 

In line with the Committee’s terms of reference it is a requirement that the proposed policies are 
reported prior to the production of the Statement of Accounts. 
 

 
 

 

Report Author 

Alison Hall-Wright (Head of Finance & ICT) 

 
01476 406208 

 alison.hall-wright@southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 
 

Reviewed by: Gillian Goddard (Senior Accountant) 4 March 2022 

Approved by: Richard Wyles (Interim Chief Finance Officer)  4 March 2022 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes (Deputy Leader of the 
Council)  

8 March 2022 

 

Recommendation to the decision maker 

It is recommended that Governance & Audit Committee  

• Approves the Statement of Accounting Policies, as set out at Appendix A to this 
report to be used in the production of the 2021/22 financial statements 

• Notes the proposed dates for the publication of the draft and final audited accounts.  

67

Agenda Item 9

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 
 

The Background to the Report 

1.1 As part of its Statement of Accounts, the Council needs to disclose the accounting policies 

it has applied to all material balances and transactions. These are drawn up in line with 

the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 

(The Code). 

1.2 It is good practice to consider and adopt the accounting policies in advance of the 

production and approval of draft accounts and to this end all accounting policies have 

been reviewed for the 2021/22 financial year to ensure that they comply with The Code.  

The 2022/23 CIPFA Code has only minor changes compared to 2021/22, none of which 

are judged material in relation to the Council’s Statement of Accounts and so no changes 

have been made to the policies used in 2020/21.  Appendix A details the accounting 

policies to be applied in the preparation of the Statement of Accounts 2021/22.   

1.3 The following table details the publication dates for the 2021/22 draft and audited 

statement of accounts and subject to consultation the proposed dates for the 2022/23 to 

2027/28 draft and audited statement of accounts: 

 

 Publication Date 
2021/22 Statement 
of Accounts 

 

Proposed 
Publication date 
from 2022/23 
Statement of 
Accounts 

Draft Statement of Accounts 31 July 2022 31 May for each 
year from 2023 

Audited Statement of Accounts 30 November 2022 30 September for 
each year from 
2023 

 

 

1.4 During the year end process there may be changes required to the policies arising from 

changes in circumstances or updated guidance.  These will be agreed with the Section 

151 Officer and reported to Governance and Audit Committee alongside the final 

Statement of Accounts. 

Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 The Governance and Audit Committee are asked to approve the Statement of Accounting 

Policies set out in Appendix A. 

Available Options Considered 

3.1 No other options are available as local authorities are required to prepare accounting 

policies for inclusion in the Statement of Accounts. 

Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

4.1 As part of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 Local Authorities are 

required to include Accounting Policies in the Statement of Accounts. 

 

68



 
 

Financial Implications  

5.1 Prior to the compilation of the Statement of Accounts for 2021/22 it is important that 

members of Governance and Audit Committee have the opportunity to discuss and 

comment on the accounting policies to be used in the production of the financial 

statements.  These policies if agreed, will be applied to the treatment of all transactions 

that make up the figures in the Statement of Accounts to ensure that the accounts present 

a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council at the balance sheet date and of 

its income and expenditure for the financial year. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Chief Finance Officer 

Legal and Governance Implications  

6.1 Local authorities are required by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to prepare a 

Statement of Accounts in accordance with relevant regulations. The policies referred to 

are a requirement of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015.  Any updates 

and amendments should be reported to Governance and Audit Committee in accordance 

with its role to approve the Statement of Accounting Policies. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Head of Democratic Services and 

Deputy Monitoring Officer 

Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

7.1 Not applicable. 

Risk and Mitigation 

8.1 Not applicable. 

Community Safety Implications  

9.1 Not applicable. 

How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District Council’s 

declaration of a ‘climate emergency’? 

10.1 This recommendation is carbon neutral. 

Background Papers 

11.1 None. 

Appendices 

12.1 Appendix A – 2021-22 Statement of Accounting Policies 

69



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

I. GENERAL PRINCIPLES 
 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2021/22 
financial year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2022.  The Council is 
required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015. These regulations require the Statement of Accounts to be 
prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily 
comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2021/22 and supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).  
 
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally 
historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets 
and financial instruments. 
 

II. ACCRUALS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments 
are made or received. In particular: 
 

• Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council transfers the 
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that 
economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to 
the Council. 

 

• Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can 
measure reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable 
that economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow 
to the Council. 

 

• Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a 
gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are 
carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet. 

 

• Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by 
employees) are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather 
than when payments are made. 
 

• Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for 
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate 
for the relevant financial instrument, rather than the cash flows fixed or determined 
by the contract. 

 

• Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been 
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the 
Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written 
down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.  

 

71



Appendix A 

• The impact of IFRS15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers has been 
considered and deemed to have no material impact. 

 
III. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable 
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid 
investments that mature in 30 days or less from the date of acquisition and that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. 
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank 
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s 
cash management. 
 

IV. CHARGES TO REVENUE FOR NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
 
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following 
amounts to record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year. 
 

• Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service. 

• Revaluation and Impairment losses on assets used by the service where 
there are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the 
loss can be written off. 

• Amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service. 
 
The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses or amortisation.  However, it is required to make an annual 
contribution from revenue towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement 
equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in 
accordance with statutory guidance.  Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses 
and amortisation are therefore replaced by the contribution in the General Fund 
Balance by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two. 
 

V. COUNCIL TAX AND NON-DOMESTIC RATES 
 
Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) 
on behalf of major preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as, principals, 
collecting council tax and NDR for themselves. Billing authorities are required by 
statute to maintain a separate fund (i.e. the Collection Fund) for the collection and 
distribution of amounts due in respect of council tax and NDR. Under the legislative 
framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major preceptors and central 
government share proportionately the risks and rewards that the amount of council tax 
and NDR collected could be less or more than predicted. 
 
Accounting for Council TAX and NDR 
 
The council tax and NDR included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement is the council’s share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations 
determine the amount of council tax and NDR that must be included in the Council’s 
General Fund. Therefore, the difference between the income included in the 

72



Appendix A 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the amount required by 
regulation to be credited to the General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund 
Adjustment Account and included as a reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. 
 
The Balance Sheet includes the council’s share of the end of year balances in respect 
of council tax and NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts, 
overpayments and prepayments and appeals. 
 

VI. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 
Benefits Payable during Employment 
 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year 
end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid 
sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits for current employees.  These 
expenses are charged on an accruals basis to the relevant service line of the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
Termination Benefits  
 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to 
terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s 
decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.  They are 
charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate service, or where applicable, to the 
Non Distributed Costs line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
at the earlier of when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or 
when the council recognises costs for a restructuring. 
 
Post-Employment Benefits  
 
Employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pension Fund, 
administered by Lincolnshire County Council.  The scheme provides defined benefits 
to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees worked for 
the Council.   
 
The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the revenue account when 
employees earn them, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. 
 
Local Government Pension Scheme 
 
The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefit scheme: 
 

• The liabilities of the Lincolnshire County Council pension scheme attributable to 
the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the 
projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made 
in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on 
assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projected 
earnings for current employees.  

 

73



Appendix A 

• The assets of the Lincolnshire County Council pension fund attributable to the 
Council are included in the balance sheet at their fair value. 
 

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: 
 

• Service Cost comprising: 
 

- Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service 
earned this year –  allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement to the revenue accounts of services for which the employees 
worked 
 

- Past service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme 
amendment or curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in 
earlier years – debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non 
Distributed Costs 
 

• Net interest on the net defined pension liability (asset) i.e. net interest expense 
for the Council – the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability 
(asset) that arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. Remeasurement comprising: 
 

- The return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the 
defined benefit liability (asset) charged to the Pension Reserve as Other 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
 

-  Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise 
because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial 
valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumption – charged 
to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 

 
- Contributions paid to the Lincolnshire County Council pension fund – cash paid 

as employer’s contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not 
accounted for as an expense.   

 
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund 
Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or 
directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant 
accounting standards.    
 
In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers to and 
from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement 
benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and 
pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative 
balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact 
to the General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis 
of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees. 
Discretionary Benefits 

74



Appendix A 

 
The Council has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits 
in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an 
award to any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the 
award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local 
Government Pension Scheme. 
 

VII. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
Financial Liabilities  
 
Financial Liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes 
a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured 
at fair value and carried at their amortised cost.  Annual charges to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the 
liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the 
life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised.  
 
For all of the borrowing that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in 
the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principle repayable (plus accrued interest) and 
interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account is the 
amount payable for the year in the loan agreement. 
 
Financial Assets 

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach 
that reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow 
characteristics. There are three main classes of financial assets measured at:  
 

• amortised cost  

• fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and  

• fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). 
 

The Council’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash 
flows. Financial assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those 
whose contractual payments are not solely payment of principal and interest (ie 
where the cash flows do not take the form of a basic debt instrument).  

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost  

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet 
when the Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial 
instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured 
at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) 
for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by 
the effective rate of interest for Statements the instrument. For most of the financial 
assets held by the Council, this means that the amount presented in the Balance 

75



Appendix A 

Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest 
credited to the CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.  

Interest is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in 
the CIES at a marginally higher effective rate of interest than the rate receivable from 
the voluntary organisations, with the difference serving to increase the amortised 
cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions require that the impact of 
soft loans on the General Fund Balance is the interest receivable for the financial 
year – the reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the CIES to the net gain 
required against the General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the 
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or 
debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.  

Expected Credit Loss Model  

The Council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at 
amortised cost, either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss 
model also applies to lease receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are 
recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the Council.  

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows 
might not take place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit 
risk plays a crucial part in assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly 
since an instrument was initially recognised, losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. 
Where risk has not increased significantly or remains low, losses are assessed on 
the basis of 12-month expected losses.  

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit of Loss  

Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet 
when the Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial 
instrument and are initially measured and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and 
losses are recognised as they arrive in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services.  

The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following 
techniques:  

 

• instruments with quoted market prices – the market price  

• other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash 
flow analysis.  

 

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the 
following three levels:  

 

• Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical 
assets that the Council can access at the measurement date.  

• Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that 
are observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly.  

76



Appendix A 

• Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset.  
 

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or 
debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 

VIII. GOVERNMENT GRANTS & OTHER CONTRIBUTIONS  
 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third 
party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is 
reasonable assurance that: 
 

• The Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 

• The grants or contributions will be received 
 
Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or 
contributions have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the 
future economic benefits or service potentially embodied in the asset in the form of the 
grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or 
future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. 
 
Money advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been 
satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, 
the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue 
grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income (non-ringfenced 
revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 
 

IX. HERITAGE ASSETS 
 
Heritage assets are held or maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge 
and culture.   They are initially recognised at cost if this is available.   If cost is not 
available, values are only included in the Balance Sheet where the cost of obtaining 
valuation is not disproportionate to the benefit derived.  For most of the Council’s 
heritage assets, insurance valuations are used.  Where no market exists or the asset 
is deemed to be unique, and it is not practicable to obtain a valuation, the asset is not 
recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in the notes to the accounts. 
 
Heritage assets are depreciated over their useful life if this can be established.  If an 
asset is considered to have an indefinite life, no depreciation is charged.  Disposals, 
revaluation gains and losses and impairments of heritage assets are dealt with in 
accordance with the Council’s policies relating to property, plant and equipment.   
 
The cost of maintenance and repair of heritage assets is written off in the year 
incurred. 
 

X. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 

77



Appendix A 

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are 
identifiable and controlled by the Council (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when 
it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the 
intangible asset to the Council.  
 
Expenditure on the development of the Council’s website is not capitalised.   
 
Intangible Assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the 
fair value of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active 
market. In practice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and 
they are therefore carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible 
asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for impairment 
whenever there is an indication that the asset might be impaired – any losses 
recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement. Any gains or losses arising on the disposal or 
abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure Line 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory 
purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not 
permitted to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are 
therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds 
greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
 
The useful life of intangible assets is assessed by the Chief Finance Officer at the time 
of acquisition.  Intangible assets are derecognised when no future economic benefits 
are expected from them. 
 

XI. INTERESTS IN COMPANIES AND OTHER ENTITIES 
 
The Council has a material interest in Invest SK and Environment SK.  The nature of 
these relationships has been assessed and they are deemed to be subsidiaries.  The 
Council is not currently required to produce group accounts on the grounds of 
materiality.  In respect of Gravitas and LeisureSK the Council produces Group 
Accounts. 
 

XII. INVENTORIES AND LONG TERM CONTRACTS 
 
Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value.  
 
Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit 
on the provision of services with the value of works and services received under the 
contract during the financial year.   
 
 

XIII. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 
 

78



Appendix A 

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital 
appreciation. The definition is not met if property is used in any way to facilitate the 
delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale. 
 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, 
being the price that would be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. As a non-financial asset 
investment properties are measured at highest and best use. Properties are not 
depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the year end. 
Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income 
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The 
same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.  
 
Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and 
Investment Income line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, 
revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements 
to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore 
reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement 
and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than 
£10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve. 

 
XIV. LEASES 

 
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the property, plant 
or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating 
leases. 
 
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are 
considered separately for classification. 
 
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an 
asset in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the 
arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets 
 
The Council as Lessee 
 
Finance Leases: 
 
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance 
Sheet at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the leases 
inception (or the present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset 
recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor e.g. payments 
net of financing costs. Initial direct costs of the Council are added to the carrying 
amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into the lease are applied to writing down 
the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the period in which 
they are incurred. 
 
Lease payments are apportioned between: 
 

79



Appendix A 

• A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – 
applied to write down the lease liability, and 

• A finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement). 

 
Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using 
the policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged 
over the lease term if this is shorter than the assets estimated useful life (where 
ownership of the asset does not transfer to the Council at the end of the lease period). 
 
Operating Leases 
 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from use of the 
leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight line basis over 
the life of the lease, even if this does not match the patterns of payments (e.g. there 
is a rent free period at the commencement of the lease). 
 
The Council as Lessor 
 
Finance Leases 
 
Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or 
equipment, the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal and 
replaced by a long-term debtor in the Balance Sheet valued on the future income due 
under the finance lease.  
 
Operating Leases 
 
Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or 
equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to 
the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if 
this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the 
commencement of the lease).  
 

XV. OVERHEADS AND SUPPORT SERVICES  
 
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in 
accordance with the Council’s arrangements for accountability and financial 
performance.  
 

XVI. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply 
of goods and services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are 
expected to be used during more than one financial year are classified as Property 
Plant and Equipment.  
Recognition:  
 

80



Appendix A 

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and 
Equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the 
future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the 
Council, over more than one year and that the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably.  Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an assets potential to deliver 
future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged 
as an expense when it is incurred.   
 
The Council has a de-minimis of £10,000 for capital expenditure, with the exception of 
the purchase of motor vehicles.  Where the total cost of an asset is higher than £10,000 
but only part of the expenditure has occurred within a financial year that expenditure 
would be included in the balance sheet even if it was below the de minimis level.  
 
Measurement 
 
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 
 

• the purchase price 

• any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary 
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management 

 
The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred while assets are under 
construction. 
 
The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, 
unless the acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a 
variation in the cash flows of the Council). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired 
via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given 
up by the Council. 
 
Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 

• Dwellings – current value determined using the basis of existing use value for 
social housing (EUV-SH).  The social housing discount applied in 2021/22 is 42%. 

• Community assets and assets under construction –  historic cost.  

• Plant, Vehicles & Equipment – depreciated historical cost 

• All other classes of assets – current value, unless there is no market-based 
evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of the asset.  In this case 
fair value is estimated using the Depreciated Replacement Cost method. 

 
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are re-valued where there have 
been material changes in the value, but as a minimum every five years.  Valuations of 
property assets are carried out by the District Valuer, an external, qualified valuer, who 
is independent of the Council. The method of valuations is as recommended by CIPFA 
and in accordance with the principles and guidance notes issued by the Royal Institute 
of Chartered Surveyors.   Operational assets constructed or acquired during the year 
will be re-valued on 31 March of the following year.   
 

81



Appendix A 

Increases as a result of revaluations are debited to the appropriate asset account, with 
the opposite entry going to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains, 
except to the extent where it reverses a previous revaluation loss that was charged to 
a service revenue account within the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 
Statement.  In this case the revaluation gain will first be used to offset the previous 
loss and any further gain is then taken to the Revaluation Reserve.  Revaluation gains 
charged to Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services are transferred to the Capital 
Adjustment Account and reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
Decreases as a result of revaluation, which are not specific to one asset but affect 
several, are revaluation losses as opposed to impairments.  The decrease is 
recognised in the Revaluation Reserve up to the balance in respect of each asset 
affected and then in Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services.   Any such charge 
taken to Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services is then transferred to the Capital 
Adjustment Account and reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 
only, the date of its formal implementation.  Gains arising before that date have been 
consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Impairment 
 
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an 
asset may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are 
estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where 
this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for 
the shortfall. 
 
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 

• Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation 
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up 
to the amount of the accumulated gains) 

• Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, 
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,  

 
Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the 
relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up 
to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been 
charged if the loss had not been recognised. 
 
Depreciation 
 
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the 
systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception 
is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain 
Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under 
construction). 
 

82



Appendix A 

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 
 

• Land is not depreciated as it will not have a finite life. 
 

• Council Dwellings and Other Buildings are depreciated using the straight line 
method. The finite useful life is assessed by the District Valuer at the time of 
revaluation but for Council Dwellings is usually 50 years, and for other buildings is 
between 1 and 60 years. 

 

• Plant and Equipment are also depreciated by the straight line method. Useful life 
is assessed by the Chief Finance Officer at the time of acquisition, usually between 
3 and 10 years.  Some assets have a longer life span, up to 30 years.   

 

• Vehicles are depreciated using the reducing balance method at a rate of 25% per 
annum. 

 

• Non-current assets held-for sale are not depreciated. 
 

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose 
cost is significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are 
depreciated separately. 
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated with an amount equal to the difference 
between current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would 
have been chargeable based on their historic cost being transferred each year from 
the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.  
 
Componentisation 
 
Only assets with a carrying amount more than or equal to £500,000 at the beginning 
of the financial year are considered for componentisation.  To be recognised as a 
component the value of the part of the asset being considered must be more than or 
equal to 10% of the value of the asset, and have a life less than or equal to half that 
of the main asset.  When a component is replaced, the carrying amount of the old 
component is derecognised and the new component is recognised. If the carrying 
amount of the old component is not known, this is estimated by indexing back from the 
cost of the new component and adjusting for depreciation and impairment over the old 
component’s useful life.  The Building Costs Index will be used. 
 
The depreciation calculated is charged to the service revenue accounts, central 
support service accounts and trading accounts.  
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference 
between current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would 
have been chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from 
the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale 
  

83



Appendix A 

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is 
classified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before 
reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs 
to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to a fair value less costs to sell, the loss 
is posted in the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of 
any previous losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. 
Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. 
 
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are 
reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount 
before they were classified as held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or 
revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been classified as Held 
for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell. 
 
Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for 
Sale. 
 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in 
the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) 
is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from 
disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off 
against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains 
accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital 
Adjustment Account. 
 
Amounts for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. A 
proportion of receipts related to housing disposals is payable to the Government. The 
balance of receipts remains within the Capital Receipts Reserve and can then only be 
used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Council’s underlying need 
to borrow (the capital financing requirement).  
 
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of 
non-current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital 
financing.  
 
 

XVII. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 
Provisions  
 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or 
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic 
benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation.  
 

84



Appendix A 

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement that the Council becomes aware 
of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of 
the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and 
uncertainties 
 
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the 
Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year 
- where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be 
required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed 
and credited back to the relevant service. 
 
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be 
recovered from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised 
as income for the relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be 
received if the obligation is settled. 
 
The council has made a provision for settling the self-insured element of Public Liability 
insurance claims. 
 
Contingent Liabilities 
 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a 
possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or 
otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council. 
Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise 
be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or 
the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note 
to the accounts. 
 
Contingent Assets 
 
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a 
possible asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise 
of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council. 
 
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to 
the accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or 
service potential. 
 
 

XVIII. RESERVES 
 
The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to 
cover contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the 
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to 
be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that 
year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the 

85



Appendix A 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then transferred 
back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that 
there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure.   
 
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes e.g. for non-current 
assets, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for 
the Council – these reserves are explained in the relevant policies. 
 
 

XIX. REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE 
 
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory 
provisions but does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged 
as expenditure to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement in the year.   Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this 
expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital 
Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged so that there is no impact 
on the level of council tax. 
 

XX. VAT  
 

VAT is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her 
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income. 
 

XXI. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 
 
The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and 
investment properties at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that 
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement 
assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the 
asset or liability. 

 
The council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that 
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 
participants act in their economic best interest. 
 
When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the council takes into account 
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its 
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the 
asset in its highest and best use. 
 

86



Governance and Audit Committee Work Plan 2021-22 
 

Committee Membership: 7 
 

Chairman: Councillor Paul Wood 
 

Vice-Chairman: Councillor Kaffy Rice-Oxley 
 

Item Current Issues/Status Outcome Sought 

16 March 2022 

Internal Audit – Progress Report 
4 

Update from the Council’s Internal Auditors. To review and note the contents of 
the report. 

Internal Audit – Follow Up 
Report 4 

Follow up on progress made to implement previously agreed 
management actions. 

To review and note the contents of 
the report. 

Internal Audit – Draft Plan Draft internal plan for 2021-2022. To review and consider approving 
the internal audit plan. 

Draft Internal Audit Annual 
Report 2021 - 22 

Draft internal audit annual report 2021 - 22 To review and note the contents of 
the report. 

Statement of Accounting 
Policies 

Annual report prior to the preparation of the Statement of 
Accounts to ensure that the policies are up to date and in line with 
the CIPFA Code of Practice. 

To consider approving the 
Statement of Accounting Policies. 

 20 April 2022  

Contract Procedure Rules Update on draft updated contract procedure rules Members to note 

Strategic Risk Register The Strategic Risk Register is presented biannually as part of the 
monitoring and review of risk management arrangements 

To review and consider approving 
the Strategic Risk Register. 

Financial Regulations Review The proposed changes to the Council’s Financial Regulations 
which form part of the Council’s Constitution. 

To recommend to the Constitution 
Committee. 

87

A
genda Item

 10



Item Current Issues/Status Outcome Sought 

Delivering Good Governance – 
External Review 

Final report on the progress made against the implementation 
plan following an external review into delivering good governance. 

Members to note 

Unscheduled Items 

Review of Effectiveness and 
Terms of Reference 

Biennial review of the Committee’s Terms of Reference (July 
2022) 

To consider the Committee’s work 
over the previous two municipal 
years and suggest changes to the 
Terms of Reference if necessary. 

Section 106 Update To provide an update on the status of Section 106 funds (July 
2022) 

Members to note 

External Audit Plan Overview of the planned scope and timing of 
the statutory audit of the final accounts and the Value for Money 
work. 

To consider accepting the External 
Audit Plan. 

External Audit – Annual Report 
on Grants and Returns 

Report providing details on the Housing Benefit Subsidy claim. To review and note the contents of 
the report. 

 

Items to be allocated – as and when required 

External Audit ad hoc reporting 

Risk Management Framework 2021 - 2023 

Code of Corporate Governance 

Other policies e.g., Contract Procedure Rules, Codes of Conduct, Financial Regulations,  
Treasury Management Strategy, Financial Management Code 

Covid Recovery Reserve Funding 

 

88


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 26 January 2022
	Minutes

	4 Updates from previous meeting
	5 Internal Audit Progress Report
	6 Internal Audit Follow Up Report
	7 Draft Internal Audit Annual Report 2021-22
	Appendix A - Draft Internal Audit Annual Report 2021-22

	8 Internal Audit Draft Plan  2022 - 23
	9 Statement of Accounting Policies
	Appendix A - Statement of Accounting Policies 2021-22

	10 Work Programme 2021 - 2022



